







DEEL LEVY OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE Tuesday, September 13, 2016

MINUTES

MEMBERS PRESENT: Rick Burke, Greg Wong, Sandi Everlove, Council President Bruce Harrell, Erin Okuno, Saadia Hamid, Lucy Gaskill-Gaddis, and Kevin Washington

OTHERS PRESENT: Dwane Chappelle (DEEL), Sid Sidorowicz (DEEL), Kathryn Doll (DEEL), Monica Liang-Aguirre (DEEL), Cameron Clark (DEEL), Erica Johnson (DEEL), Alannah Taylor (DEEL), Elidia Sangerman (DEEL), Sonja Griffin (DEEL), Fanny Yang (DEEL), Bick Hang (DEEL), Dana Harrison (DEEL), Donnie Grabowski (DEEL), Brian Goodnight (Council Central Staff), Kathryn Aisenberg (DEEL), Leilani Dela Cruz (DEEL), and Pat Sander (SPS)

Dwane Chappelle called the meeting to order and reviewed the meeting agenda. The minutes from the May 10 LOC meeting were approved and a reminder about the site visit on October 11 was given.

D. Chappelle showed a video clip and talked about looking for hidden talents in yourself and the gifted kids and people around you.

Donnie Grabowski presented an overview of DEEL's organization, and its past, current, and expected revenue and expenditures (2011-2019). D. Grabowski also noted DEEL's proposed 2017-18 budget and gave a financial overview of the Families and Education Levy (FEL) and the Seattle Preschool Program (SPP) Levy.

Rick Burke asked about the K-12 unit, noting it has the most overlap with Seattle Public Schools (SPS). R. Burke also asked if the proposed K-12 division would have a new functionality or if it would be the same, existing functionality. D. Grabowski answered that it is the latter. D. Grabowski explained that it's mainly a technical change of moving the funding out of one division and putting it into the new proposed K-12 division. R. Burke asked a follow-up question about the number of the total FTEs in the Director's office last year. D. Grabowski answered it was a total of 13 or 14, and that DEEL would be moving 5 of them into the new K-12 division. R. Burke asked if the budget allocation was a sum of the parts. D. Grabowski answered yes. R. Burke noted that he wants to be very mindful around what is "City functions", what is "District functions" and stated it's very important to have that transparency and to not add administration where collaboration could be added instead. D. Grabowski agreed that this is important. Sid Sidorowicz then noted that one of the reasons behind the request for a K-12 division in the proposed 2017-18 budget is, currently, it looks like the Director's office has \$26M of administrative overhead. However,

this is the contracted amounts with the District and other sources. DEEL wants it to be clear that that is the K-12 fund that supports programs.

During the Families and Education Levy Financial Overview section Kevin Washington asked if the investments made on behalf of the Levy fund is pooled by the City and then put out to DEEL. D. Grabowski answered, yes, when the property tax revenue comes in it gets put into a City pool and the City invests it. D. Grabowski noted that DEEL does not invest it itself or have a say in how it's invested.

R. Burke asked what is used as a fiscal year, for the levy fund. D. Grabowski answered that the City uses a calendar year, but DEEL has its contract with SPS on a school year, so DEEL has both. R. Burke followed-up with asking if DEEL tracks both because in the graph it looks like a calendar year. D. Grabowski answered that all of the graphs in the handout represent calendar year amounts.

During the Seattle Preschool Program Financial Overview Greg Wong asked for clarification on the student tuition collection analysis. G. Wong noted it seems like on the tuition side, DEEL did not enroll enough families who made a high enough income to pay tuition, while also enrolling fewer families who qualified for subsidies that DEEL could use to fund SPP. He asked if the conclusion is that DEEL is seeing most of the enrollment in that middle level of families who make a little too much to qualify for programs like Head Start or Step Ahead, but don't make enough to pay tuition. M. Liang-Aguirre answered that she thinks that's exactly right. DEEL is reaching a different pocket of the population than expected, but one that is clearly benefitting from the program. It's not a loss in the big picture, but financially it's difficult. G. Wong responded that he thinks it's important for the LOC to know this because as the group discusses serving fewer students than what was advertised in the levy, the LOC and DEEL will be able to talk about how SPP is serving families right where they need to be served since they can't afford SPP and they don't qualify for the other programs.

Leilani Dela Cruz clarified that in the first year SPP did not have any Head Start programs participating. In year two SPP has been able to partner with Head Start programs and a couple more ECEAP programs, which will also help offset some of the costs. Lucy Gaskill-Gaddis stated this points out the reason it is called a Pilot program. G. Wong asked if there are any efforts to recruit more higher income families to balance that end of the spectrum. D. Chappelle stated that M. Liang-Aguirre will address that during her presentation.

Saadia Hamad asked for more clarification about the professional development and whether or not some of the teachers met the SPP guidelines and received some of the funding or none at all. D. Grabowski clarified that some of the teachers did not meet the staff education requirements so DEEL did not pay providers as much as DEEL would have if they met the staff education requirements. Given this, DEEL was able to reduce its expenditures last year, but it cannot count on that going forward. L. Gaskill-Gaddis stated also, that we do not want to count on this going forward. M. Liang-Aguirre agreed that DEEL does not want this to happen going forward and if it does its job correctly, that will go away.

During the review of the SPP Actual Expenditures L. Gaskill-Gaddis asked if the capacity building also includes support for teachers. D. Grabowski answered yes and M. Liang-Aguirre added it also supports Director training. D. Grabowski further explained it's also for teachers, tuition support, and a small component for organizational capacity as well.

During the Seattle Preschool Program Levy Financial Updates L. Gaskill-Gaddis asked if M. Liang-Aguirre will talk about the implication of reducing the total number of students overall. D. Chappelle answered that she will.

G. Wong asked since the LOC is overseeing both the FEL and SPP levies he wanted to confirm that no funds are being mixed between the levies; that something approved for one purpose is not being used for the other. D. Grabowski answered no. G. Wong asked, on a technical level, how does it worked for shared administration - for instance, D. Chappelle's position – is there an allocation between the two levies on how much certain positions are paid between the two levies? D. Grabowski answered that she itemizes out the employees; some employees are directly funded by the program budgets, but for the administrative positions she estimates the amount of time employees are spending on FEL or SPP and makes sure the amounts fit within the budgeted resources for administrative positions. G. Wong asked if that allocation changes on a regular basis. D. Grabowski answered she rebalances it every year to ensure it's accurate. L. Gaskill-Gaddis noted that as a former budget analysis it's a complicated process. D. Grabowski agreed. G. Wong clarified it's important for the LOC to know since the administrative positions are no more than 5% of the FEL or SPP Levy and there are positions funded by both of those. D. Grabowski agreed that there are positions funded by both and that some are funded by additional funds, like the general fund, as well.

S. Sidorowicz gave an example with the Step Ahead program. Step Ahead is funded under the FEL, but it has now been repurposed as an SPP Pathway program. As the program grows, DEEL is only adding Step Ahead programs with the intention that they become an SPP provider. However, those who were in Step Ahead prior to the creation of the SPP can continue on as Step Ahead for the duration of the FEL as they were, or they can convert to the SPP. As SPP has expanded DEEL changed the Step Ahead program, with the LOC, to become the SPP Pathway. DEEL hasn't really repurposed it in that it's still Early Learning money and it's still for Preschool for children who are under 300% FPL, all of the requirements that were part of the FEL, but DEEL has tied the two together now. L. Gaskill-Gaddis asked if Step Ahead is included in any of the SPP information even though they may be doing similar things. S. Sidorowicz said that will be explained when M. Liang-Aguirre talks about some of the programming.

S. Hamid asked if M. Liang-Aguirre will talk about the professional development more and asked if teachers are on their own to meet the guidelines or if they're receiving support. M. Liang-Aguirre said they are receiving support and that is part of what the DEEL team does and that there is scholarship support as well. She mentioned that over time SPP teacher credentials will go up and their payments will also increase.

D. Chappelle asked if there were any more questions on D. Grabowski's presentation and then turned the meeting over to M. Liang-Aguirre to present on the Seattle Preschool Program.

M. Liang-Aguirre started the presentation by stating it is part one of a two part series on the Seattle Preschool Program and added that DEEL is a couple of weeks into year two of the program. She presented a status update on the Seattle Preschool Program with information on how SPP did during year one and how it's currently doing during year two. Several slides were presented on the data DEEL has collected during the running of the program thus far. M. Liang-Aguirre also spoke on the new revised expansion targets and the changes DEEL has made to improve SPP for the families, teachers, providers, and partners involved.

K. Washington asked if M. Liang-Aguirre could speak more on the plans regarding site location for the next few years, and noted that as of last year, there wouldn't be as many SPS locations available. M. Liang-Aguirre responded stating she'd touch more on it later in the presentation, but mentioned DEEL is currently thinking through strategies regarding expansion, for instance a partnership with Parks and Recreation that should address the capacity issues SPP faces.

Erin Okuno asked why the number of students didn't change on the new revised ramp-up schedule when it shows a classroom was added and asked whether or not this was due to providers deciding to have fewer students in their classroom. M. Liang-Aguirre answered that the maximum number of students a classroom can have is 20; however, due to licensing and available space some classrooms can have only 18 or 17 students. The number on the slide is based on an average of 19 students per classroom.

G. Wong asked that since SPP is not at capacity does everyone who is eligible and applies get selected. M. Liang-Aguirre stated that SPP is not full yet, but there is a wait list. It's a complicated process where DEEL aligns families with what their preferences are. DEEL offers families locations and then they either accept or decline. If they decline, they have to re-enroll, so it's a bit of a process and there's a time-lag. DEEL just ran another enrollment process this week so DEEL will be reaching out to families and letting them know there are still spots, but it's a matter of finding the right match.

G. Wong asked a follow-up question on whether or not DEEL anticipates the number or percent of grandfathered enrollees will be going down significantly in future years. M. Liang-Aguirre answered not necessarily. This is one of the policy changes DEEL was intentional about because we learned that providers need the flexibility to provide continuity of care for families that they work with or to meet their programmatic needs, so this is actually something that will continue. K. Washington asked if the grandfathered percentage would stay at the current level. M. Liang-Aguirre said she believes so and asked L. Dela Cruz for her opinion. L. Dela Cruz answered it will be hard to predict since DEEL does not know which providers will be coming in next year. S. Sidorowicz added that DEEL has a number of projects in place that will likely be for 4-year old students only, or 3-year old and 4-year old students. For example, DEEL is investing facility funds for 4 classrooms in the Miller Annex that are only preschool age and another one in Lake City that is only preschool age. Some of the classrooms that are in the District are only for 4-year old students, so we have some providers that are exclusive in the age served and others who's mix different ages.

L. Gaskill-Gaddis asked if there are any providers who are not continuing, either because they do not want to or they are no longer eligible. L. Dela Cruz answered that we lost one site because they lost their lease.

S. Hamid asked about enrollment and whether or not there are enrollment stations in the community in addition to the online enrollment. M. Liang-Aguirre answered that DEEL's Outreach Team worked closely with a number of community organizations, Parks, and libraries. They were at numerous outreach fairs, to talk directly to parents and to have paper copies of the application available.

S. Hamid asked if there are ways to help the families who are selected for the school near where they live, but they work somewhere else in the city and would like to go to another location. M. Liang-Aguirre said DEEL is still trying to perfect the matchmaking. Parents this year had at least some say in what geographic region they were interested in. The first year, they did not. This year, parents had a choice of geographic preference, and if they had an interest in a particular program, such as dual language. DEEL did not allow them to choose a specific classroom, only a preference for areas. For SPS our policy changed this year, to ensure continuity for families and kids. If there was an SPP program in an SPS building and that child is zoned for that SPS school, then that child would have preference for that Pre-K. This is so the student could continue there for Kindergarten and build a relationship with that school. It hasn't worked perfectly, because some families do not go to their zoned school and we ran into that this year. It's a very nuanced process and we learn a lot as we implement it. Our goal is try to make appropriate matches as early as possible.

R. Burke asked if there is a sibling component to enrollment. M. Liang-Aguirre answered that they have a sibling preference if they have a sibling in SPP, but it doesn't happen that often (due to the closeness in age). Erica Johnson added DEEL plans to implement a sibling preference for the elementary schools, but still needs to figure out how it will work operationally since DEEL cannot currently call the schools to see if a student is attending there, but DEEL is going to be working through that in the coming year.

G. Wong asked how it works with Levy funding since a 1/3 of the seats are going to grandfathered students. For the students who are considered grandfathered are they receiving preschool grant funding to the sites. M. Liang-Aguirre answered that all the grandfather students are eligible SPP kids; they're just not going through the DEEL selection process. G. Wong noted that we should come up with a different term for those students. Kathryn Aisenberg added that internally, DEEL has seven different groups for the students, but this term is at a high level for external presentations. L. Dela Cruz added we are open to suggestions for a new term.

Regarding the demographics of SPP students. E. Okuno asked what the total number of students is. M. Liang Aguirre answered it's based off of 400 students. So, 25% white is based off of 400 students. K. Aisenberg added DEEL has better data now and stated it's difficult to compare the two charts from 2015-16 to 2016-17. Sandi Everlove asked if the increase of 7% for Hispanic/Latino is a significant increase to DEEL. She also asked if there was different outreach, or word of mouth, or something specific that caused the increase. M. Liang-Aguirre stated DEEL can't contribute it to one thing and asked L. Dela

Cruz for her opinion. L. Dela Cruz answered we added an SPS extension, a provider and a few programs, and a bilingual outreach staff member who is fluent in Spanish, but that it is hard to say exactly what it was.

Bruce Harrell asked to go back to discuss the prioritization of 4-year old over 3-year old students. The numbers for 3-year old students dropped dramatically and even the ratios have gone down significantly. He asked if that concerns DEEL and if that is trending the way DEEL wants it to. M. Liang-Aguirre answered that it's indicating that we are having more interest by 4-year old students and that we're actually able to place them this year. The program is such that we place all 4-year old students before we start placing 3-year old students. We also place any 4-year old, regardless of income, and 3-year old students are only eligible if they're below 300% of the poverty level. M. Liang-Aguirre added that she thinks it's interesting and a good question. She added that she thinks it has to do largely with DEEL being more successful with placing the 4-year old students and doing outreach there. B. Harrell followed-up with asking that the drop-off of 3-year olds doesn't overly concern DEEL because of the emphasis, and if that was correct. M. Liang-Aguirre answered that it does not concern her and asked if anyone else had any thoughts. E. Okuno stated isn't it that a lot of the 3-year old students in 2015 were also grandfathered in, so the ratio was expected to drop. M. Liang-Aquirre said this was true and thanked E. Okuno for the reminder.

S. Everlove asked if we're going to be able to track the students who started as a 3-year old and a 4-year old and then went into the system in terms of growth gains. M. Liang-Aguirre said yes, that is the intent. K. Washington asked if they have numbers and a database. E. Johnson stated DEEL does not have them yet, but is working on it and will be getting them. K. Aisenberg said DEEL has a new database and that the students will have this same identification number throughout the lifetime they're in the DEEL system and there is a field for their SPS I.D. as well.

S. Hamid noted she was surprised by the primary language graph and that the Somali and Amharic languages were both 2% in 2015-16 and in 2016-17, also Somali was not listed and Amharic language was 3%. She asked if the insignificant change surprised DEEL. M. Liang-Aguirre answered that there are so many different languages represented. Last year, there were at least 16 different languages represented and this year she wasn't sure how many there were. She stated that DEEL hasn't really had any center-based providers in the African communities yet, but are hoping to address this with the Family Child Care (FCC) Pilot. DEEL hopes to target different parts of our community. The other languages are fairly small so it didn't stand out to her particularly. L. Dela Cruz added that we have one Head Start provider this year and that we had zero last year. Those programs are serving a large immigrant and refugee population. DEEL is trying to continue our outreach efforts with our FCC Pilot.

On the Demographics of SPP Students by Enrollment Type E. Okuno wanted to specify if "two or more races" meant one of the races was of color. K. Aisenberg answered that is correct.

On the following slide, FPL Breakdown, G. Wong noted that SPP wanted the program to be social economically diverse and that we are achieving one of the actual goals of the

program. While discussing the Identified Challenges and Timeline Improvements slide, S. Everlove asked when the parents let DEEL know whether or not they wanted the slot. M. Liang-Aguirre answered it varied; DEEL gave parents 30 days at first and as the deadline got closer, 48 hours to decide if they were going to take the slot.

B. Harrell asked for clarification on the 80% enrollment and if the 440 students enrolled were 80% based on 600 students. M. Liang-Aguirre answered yes. B. Harrell asked if DEEL's goal is 780 students for the year. M. Liang-Aguirre responded that was the original number, but with the revised goal it is now 600 students. S. Sidorowicz added that SPP is above that number and is currently closer to 537. L. Dela Cruz added SPP enrollment is at 88%.

K. Washington asked if the single classroom model works for some providers. M. Liang-Aguirre stated the intent behind the two-classroom model was for an economy of scale for DEEL. For example, if DEEL coaches go out to a site they could observe two at one location and it would be more efficient. Then, DEEL allowed an agency, if they had more than one classroom at different sites. DEEL didn't want to eliminate the small providers and this requirement change helped. K. Washington asked when DEEL reviews criteria, if an agency won't necessarily have to have the components of the current two curricula, HighScope and Creative - they could actually have a third, or fourth, or fifth model. M. Liang- Aguirre answered, potentially.

R. Burke asked if CHIPS is coupled to Facebook or Twitter. L. Dela Cruz said it takes a user to the DEEL Facebook or Twitter page and it is not coupled.

E. Okuno asked if the facility grants are open or if they are specifically targeting certain areas of the city or demographic mixes to align with student needs. M. Liang-Aguirre said she thinks they are prioritizing and asked Cameron Clark for more details. C. Clark stated it is open, but only for Pathway providers. The demographics are part of the areas targeted. E. Okuno clarified her question and asked if the grants are being directed with a racial equity focus. E. Johnson stated the facility funds is structured to align with our contracting priorities, which do have a racial equity focus and are really focused around schools that have a low segmentation level with SPS. However, we have not received a large number of high quality applications so that hasn't come into the conversation yet, but we have another round since there are two open rounds for this year. E. Okuno stated that there is some work that needs to be done so that we are getting the right applicants into that pool. E. Johnson, said yes, we offer predevelopment services to help with facility planning and C. Clark is working with our providers to let them know that this is available to help providers prepare for the RFI. E. Johnson said the two awardees this year were ReWA and Causey's.

S. Hamid asked if the scholarships are only for Lead Teachers and assistants or if it trickles to aids in the classroom as well. E. Johnson answered that the priorities set were for Lead and Assistant teachers who did not meet DEEL's education standards, but it is also open to Program Supervisors and Directors who do not meet DEEL's education standards. DEEL is in open conversations with the different providers and different staff members who have an interest in continuing their education, but maybe they don't fall into that specific category. For example, one agency has intent to expand, and they have

assistant teachers who currently meet the education standards for assistant teachers, but they would like to get them involved in a BA program now so that they can promote them when the new centers open. That was a request that was sent to DEEL and we're learning so much through this process. That is going to be included as an exception – if a provider has a clear plan to expand and is making a commitment to a teacher then we want to get started on continuing their education.

The final question came from K. Washington regarding the FCC Pilot and asked if he should think of it as a Family Friendly Neighbor Pilot. M. Liang-Aguirre answered that FCC stands for Family Childcare, so they will have to be licensed.

D. Chapelle thanked everyone for coming, reminded them to watch for hidden talents in themselves and the people around them. The meeting was adjourned shortly after 5:30 p.m.